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Mobile Treatment Services/Assertive Community Treatment (MTS/ACT) 

in Southern Maryland 
Pre-Bid Conference Summary 

January 24, 2022 
 
Attendance:  Partnership Development Group, QCI Behavioral Health, Pyramid Healthcare 
(Walden), Southern Maryland Community Network 
LBHA Staff:  Anne Arundel County – Catherine Gray, Jeanette Cohen, Chelsea Bednarczyk, 
Calvert County – Andrea McDonald-Fingland, Charles County – Karyn Black, Donna Brennan, 
St. Mary’s County – Tammy Loewe 
 
Questions and Answers 

1. Why was the RFP issued at this time and what are some of the pain points on why this 
was requested at this time? 

a. This project is being released through the Five County project, which was 
initiated after the closure of Crownsville State Hospital and includes Anne 
Arundel, Calvert, Charles, Prince George’s and St. Mary’s counties.  Currently, 
only Anne Arundel and Prince George’s counties have ACT.  BHA currently 
secured funding for the ACT Expansion project in the Southern Maryland region. 

 
2. What is the population for this project, in terms of mental health and SUD needs? 

a. The 100 individuals served by the ACT will come from Calvert, Charles, and. St. 
Mary’s counties combined.  These can be individuals who have not been able to 
engage in traditional behavioral health services or high utilizers of the public 
behavioral health system who are often experiencing co-occurring substance 
misuse issues, legal challenges, and unmet medical, social, and financial needs. 
i.e. individuals traditionally serviced with ACT services meeting medical 
necessity criteria for those services.  

 
3. Is this episode-by-episode billing or is it a monthly case rate? 

a. Monthly case rate with minimum number of encounters will be used to generate 
billing once the program has transitioned from grant funding to fee for service. In 
accordance with billing procedures outlined in COMAR 

 
4. Are MOUs required for the submission or are they expected to be established upon RFP 

award? 
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a. MOUs would occur after the award is made.  
 

5. Can you confirm the required staffing outlined in the RFP?  Based on the required 
staffing ratio of 1:10, it would appear there is one additional direct care FTE needed on 
top of what is detailed in section F. 

a. The 1.0 FTE Team Assistant does not count in the 1:10 staffing ratio. 
b. The 1.0 FTE Psychiatric Nurse Practitioner or Psychiatrist does not count in the  

            does not count in the 1:10 staffing ratio 
c. There is an additional direct care FTE required for a staffing ratio of 1:10.   

 
6. Are you looking for one team to serve the three counties or one team per county? 

a. One team to serve Calvert, Charles and St. Mary’s counties. 
 

7. Is there an EHR requirement? If so, can the applicant propose an EHR or is there an 
established EHR that is required to be utilized? 

a. No there is no specific EHR that must be used 
 

8. Is there an indirect cost cap? 
a. Indirect is capped at 7%. 

 
9. Can the team utilize an LPN instead of an RN? 

a. Team must employ registered nurses (RNs) as part of the required staffing 
configuration. 

 
10. Can the team utilize a CRNP instead of a psychiatrist? 

a. Under its existing COMAR 10.63 regulations, the Behavioral Health 
Administration (BHA) accepts psychiatric nurse practitioners (CRNP-PMH) as 
valid providers of psychiatric services within a Mobile Treatment Service and 
allows them to substitute for the required psychiatrist position.     

 
11. Is it permissible to purchase vehicles with this funding? 

a. No. 

 
Additional Information: 
In Calvert County, the vendor will need to collaborate with the Crisis Services’ provider.  The 
expectation is that the selected provider will work with the local LBHA, inpatient hospitals and 
community providers.  Additionally, the vendor will need to work with the Projects for 
Assistance in Transitions from Homelessness (PATH) program to identify individuals who may 
benefit from ACT after they have been housed.  DSS is the single point of entry in the Southern 
region for services for individuals experiencing homelessness, so the vendor will need to work 
with the local DSS offices. 


